ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCCI AL SERVI CES COW TTEE
Novenber 9, 2001
9:05 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Chair

Senat or Loren Leman, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Bettye Davis

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Jerry Ward
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Fred Dyson
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Subcommi ttee on Health Care and Wl fare
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

See Senate HESS m nutes dated 11/8/01.
W TNESS REG STER

Sandy Hoback

Anmerican Institute for Full Enpl oynent
PO Box 1329

Klamath Falls, OR 97601

Ji m Nordl und, Director
Di vi sion of Public Assistance
Department of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601

Yvonne Chase, Deputy Conmi ssi oner
Depart ment of Education &

Early Devel opnent

801 W 10" St.

Juneau, AK 99801-1894

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- Novenber 9, 2001



Karen Pearson, Director

Di vi sion of Public Health

Departnent of Health & Social Services
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

Dr. Beth Funk

D vision of Public Health

Department of Health & Social Services
3601 C St., Ste 540

Anchor age, AK 99507

Dr. Lynn Lucher

D vision of Public Health

Department of Health & Social Services
4500 Boni face Par kway

Anchor age, AK 99507

Davi d Pierce

Departnent of Health & Social Services
PO Box 110650

Juneau, AK 999811

Janet dark

Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

Rob Goul d, Manager
Fai r banks Menori al Hospital / ASHNHA
Fai r banks, AK

Ceci | Bykerk, Chairman

Al aska Conprehensive | nsurance Association (ACl A)
Mut ual of Onmaha

No address provi ded

Ri ck Johnson
PO Box 876389
Wasilla, AK 99687

Ni col e Sal i nas, Executive
Aet na Accounts
No address provi ded

M . Bob Lohr, Director
Di vi si on of |nsurance

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- Novenber 9, 2001



Department of Comrunity and Econoni ¢ Devel opnent

3601 C Street, Ste. 1324
Anchor age AK 99503

Marj ori e Linder
PO Box 230029
Anchor age, AK 99523

Dr. Rodman W/ son
361 Egavi k Dr.
Anchor age, AK 99503

Renee Mason
901 Justice St
Wasilla, AK 99654

Kar en Nugen-Logan
PO Box 871545
Wasilla, AK 99687

Jerry Near
PO Box 448
Sol dot na, AK 99669

Mary Grisco
Al'l Al aska Pediatrics Partnership
No address provi ded

Mari|lyn Kasmar
903 W Northern Lights Bl vd.
Anchor age, AK 99503

Susan ©Mason- Bout er se
PO Box 787
Tal keet na, AK 99676

Sar ah Jackson

Cat holic Social Services
3710 E 20N

Anchor age, AK 99508
Angel a Gonzal ez

3710 E 20"

Anchor age, AK 99508
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-51, SIDE A

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3-

November

9, 2001



CHAl RAMOVAN LYDA GREEN called the Senate Health, Education &
Social Services Committee neeting to order at 9:05 a.m She
announced the committee would discuss welfare reform and the
i npact that welfare reformhas had on Medi cai d.

M5. SANDY HOBACK, a consultant under contract with the Anmerican
Institute for Full Enploynent, explained that she did an
assessnment of Alaska's welfare reformeffort. She was unable to
do an in-depth assessnment but believes she hit nost of the high
points of Alaska’'s welfare reform efforts during her trip to
Al aska this past sumrer.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON infornmed the commttee that M. Nordlund
concurred with a significant portion of the recommendati ons nade
in the consultant’s report and that he has asked that the
recommendations be sorted into three categories: those that
require legislative action; those that involve DHSS policy
direction; and those that would be good practice. He asked that
Ms. Hoback explain the recomendations and that M. Nordlund
descri be DHSS s take on those reconmendati ons.

M5. HOBACK said the first recomendation is to anend Al aska
statute to allow Alaska to give full flexibility allowed under
federal law to extend benefits to sone long-term recipients.
Alaska law is currently nore restrictive than the federal |aw
regardi ng the percentage of people who can receive an exenption
from the five-year tine limt. That restriction unnecessarily
puts the state at risk of federal penalties. She recomrends
using very narrow criteria to exenpt people rather than an
arbitrary percentage cap. Creating a legislative review process
woul d assure that the programis not being abused or overly used.

MR. JI M NORDLUND, Director of the D vision of Public Assistance,
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), nentioned that
the first recomendation is in legislation introduced |ast year.
It renoves the strict 20 percent cap on the nunber of individuals
exenpted from the five-year Iimt from state law. The Institute
reconmends, and DHSS advocates, the use of criteria instead to
determ ne who is exenpt fromthe five-year limt.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said that after the review of each
recomrendation, the commttee would |like to know whether the
Adm ni stration plans to introduce legislation to address it.

MR. NORDLUND explained that the Governor introduced two bills

| ast year to address the first recomrendation. The House bill
passed w thout that provision. The Senate bill is still in the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- Novenber 9, 2001



Senate HESS Conmitt ee.

CHAl RMOMAN GREEN asked if the Senate bill wll need to be
changed.

MR. NORDLUND said it mght.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how the cap can be repealed if it is a
federal requirenent.

MR. NORDLUND clarified the federal requirenent applies to federal

noney. States are required to spend a certain anmount to
participate in this program but the federal |aw contains a
| iberal interpretation of how states can spend the noney. The

state share of the noney can be used to provide benefits for
famlies that go over the 20 percent cap.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he understands that the state does not have
to conply with the federal law if it wants to pay the full cost
and that federal participation only applies to famlies that
qual i fy under the federal |aw

MR. NORDLUND replied that if the nunber of exenpted recipients is
over 20 percent and the state wants to be able to provide
benefits beyond that, it has to set up a separate state program
that uses state noney only. He said it all conmes “out in the
wash” because a greater share of federal noney is applied to the
20 percent.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN called a brief at-ease.

M5. HOBACK agreed that this matter is essentially a bookkeeping
i ssue because the states’ maintenance of effort (MOE) 1is
required. More of the federal dollars can be shifted to the
famlies under the five-year tine limt and the state dollars can
be used for what is called a state open program

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if the state’s MOE may not pay enough in
future years.

M5. HOBACK said a nunber of states disagree that they should have
to mai ntain such a high MOE

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN sai d her concern is that this approach may only
work for a few years. She asked if the MOE is a fixed anount
every year

MR. NORDLUND expl ained the federal |aw says that the state mnust

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- Novenber 9, 2001



spend at least 75 to 80 percent of the anmount of noney it spent
in 1994, when it was running the Aid to Famlies w th Dependent
Children (AFDC) program The federal block grant, for the
current six-year authorization period, is based on the anount of
noney spent on the AFDC programin 1994.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if that nunmber can al ways be cal cul ated so
t hat what happened | ast year has no effect.

MR. NORDLUND said that is correct.

M5. HOBACK pointed out that in 2003, the federal programw || be
reauthorized so that issue wll be addressed at that tine. At
the very least, Congress will draw a different Iine and not hold
states to 1994 | evels.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented that under that federal law, no state
has been able to achi eve a savings greater than 25 percent of the
1994 base. He asked:

s that why some states have now branched out and are
utilizing sone of those funds as opposed to welfare
paynment s? They are now showng up in the form of
education grants and opportunities for welfare to work
prograns and that kind of stuff. s that what’s
happeni ng in those other states?

MR. NORDLUND sai d essentially yes, but there are strict limts on
what TANF dollars can be spent on. Sone states have gone beyond
what has traditionally been the AFDC program He expl ained that
in Al aska, the savings from fewer benefit dollars have been used
to replace general fund dollars used for childcare. Those
federal funds have to be used for prograns related to TANF.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if the |egislature should do anything to
prepare for the federal reauthorization in 2003.

MR. NORDLUND said no one knows what the federal reauthorization
will look like. He believes the best thing to do is advocate
with Al aska’s congressional del egation. Most states are asking
that federal funds not be cut because even though the anount of
benefit noney has decreased, states are using those funds to nake
general fund savings el sewhere. States are also asking for
continued flexibility. He believes one of the reasons welfare
reform has been successful is that states were freed from the
shackl es of federal rules.

CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked DHSS for a nodel of how the state and
federal funds saved by welfare reform have been redirected in

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- Novenber 9, 2001



Al aska, where the state has flexibility, and the consequences of
different actions the state m ght take.

MR. NORDLUND noted that he prepared a handout for comittee
menbers that shows how funds were spent before and after welfare
ref orm

SENATOR TAYLOR noted Ms. Hoback found that DHSS has no fornal
process in place to provide additional staffing to ensure that as
few famlies as possible reach the five-year limt. She
recommended an additional statutory change to create a separate
state program He asked if that statutory change is in the bil
before the Senate HESS Conmmi tt ee.

MR. NORDLUND said DHSS is in the process of figuring out whether
statutory authority is required to create a separate state
program

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if DHSS supports a separate state program so
that the state can avoid federal penalties.

MR. NORDLUND said it does and he offered to followup with the
commttee on the need for a statutory change.

M5. HOBACK said the second recommendation is to develop a
progressive sanction system for clients who are not cooperating.
Al aska’s sanction policy is to renove the adult needs from the
grant, which results in a 40 percent reduction. No penalty is
associated with the first sanction. The second sanction |asts
for six nmonths and the third and subsequent sanctions are for 12
nont hs. 37 other states use a different strategy: the first
sanction results in a very snmall grant reduction of $50; the
second sanction results in the renmoval of the adult needs; the

third sanction can result in full closure of that grant.
However, any of the sanctions can be “cured” with cooperation so
that prolonged penalties do not have to occur. She feels that

prol onged penalties work as a disincentive to cooperation. As
long as individuals are on prolonged sanctions, the tine clock
continues to tick. She said it is nore effective to close the
grant if a person will not cooperate and reopen it when he or she
wants to cooperate. She noted that in alnost every state that
i nmposes full famly sanctions, sanction rates have been reduced
because there is a great deal of incentive to cooperate when the
alternative is to lose all benefits.

MR. NORDLUND acknow edged that DHSS is reviewing its sanction

policies as they have not worked very well. He pointed out that
a person who is sanctioned and then imrediately tries to conply

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- Novenber 9, 2001



may not be eligible for six nonths. The reward for conpliance is
so delayed, it is not much of an incentive. DHSS has not decided
whether it wants to inplement full famly sanctions and would
like to discuss that matter with the | egislature.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked whether DHSS will have a position on that
i ssue before the legislative session.

MR. NORDLUND said it could but he felt DHSS should have an
interactive discussion with the legislature on this issue because
there are different ways to design the sanctions. He pointed out
that if a full famly sanction reginme is used, DHSS would want to
i npl enent anot her |evel of scrutiny so that no m stakes are nade.

M5. HOBACK said the next recommendation is in regard to the
diversion program which is an upfront process to get people
enpl oyed before they sign up for cash assistance. Cients could
get up to two nonths worth of assistance in exchange for not
applying for full cash assistance. During interviews across the
state, she found very few clients took advantage of it because
the anobunt of noney was not enough to allow people to be self-
sufficient. She suggested the diversion program needs closer
review and, at a mninum pay at |least three nonths of cash
assistance to entice people to use it. She also believes there is
room for inprovenent in the process of engaging applicants when
they conme through the door. People should i mredi ately understand
that the entire process is about becomng enployed versus
becom ng eligible for benefits. She pointed out that effective
prograns in other states are able to divert a significant
per cent age of applicants into enpl oynent.

MR. NORDLUND agreed the program has too nmuch of an eligibility
focus rather than a self-sufficiency focus and stated a statutory
change would be the sinplest because the program needs to be
“operationalized” in a different way.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON felt the mndset of the staff will have to
change.

MR. NORDLUND said he believes the mndset of staff has changed
but the bigger problemis the process, which has an eligibility
focus.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if DHSS needs |legislative help to
change t he process.

VR. NORDLUND said it does not and that nost of the
recommendations in the report are nmnagenent priorities. He

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- Novenber 9, 2001



pointed out DHSS is not asking for statutory or financial help
since the reconmendati ons require operational changes.

M5. HOBACK said the final |legislative recommendation is to
aut horize a nore conpl ete wage subsidy. The State of Oregon has
a very successful private sector wage subsidy programthat cashes
both the food stanp and cash grant benefits out to use as

rei mbursenent to private sector enployers who are willing to work
with TANF recipients and provide them actual training
opportunities for up to six nonths. This has been a very

successful tool to get people engaged in the private sector,
especially in the nore rural parts of Oregon where it becane an
econom ¢ devel opnent tool. It allows businesses to explore
expansi on of their businesses when they otherw se would not have
sufficient capital. Oregon purposely puts its nore barrier-prone
clients into those opportunities so it ends up being a very cost-
effective tool for the state and a good econonm c devel opnent t ool
for enpl oyers. She noted that many people believe the new on-
the-job training approach wused in Alaska wll not provide
sufficient incentive to get many enpl oyers invol ved.

MR. NORDLUND said DHSS definitely wants to look into this
recommendation and believes it can be inplenented with policy
changes.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said he is surprised that TANF funds can be
given to an enployer instead of a recipient and he would be
surprised if DHSS has the flexibility to do that. He comrent ed
that the recomrendations will require a conplete change that he
does not think can be done increnentally.

MR. NORDLUND said he believes the concept is valid. One reason
DHSS has not enployed it is that the econonmy has been very good.
However, two factors are now com ng into play, one being that the
people who were easiest to get enployed are and second, the
econony is starting to turn around. Looking at greater
incentives for enployers to hire people is sonething that DHSS
needs to address at this tine.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked M. Nordlund to suggest statutory changes if
he di scovers they are necessary to inplenent the recommendati ons.

MR. NORDLUND said he would but pointed out that Senator G een’s
wel fare reformbill that passed several years ago contai ned broad
| anguage that pertained to work supplenentation. He believes
that |anguage provides the statutory authority to run this
programthe way it is envisioned.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- Novenber 9, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said the legislature could also revisit
DHSS s mi ssi ons and nmeasures statenent.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Hoback to review welfare reform policy
priorities.

M5. HOBACK said the first recommendation is to change the
childcare co-pay schedule to avoid the “cliff” effect. The
current co-pay schedule is stair-stepped, simlar to the tax
code, so that a small increase in income can create a |arge
increase in the co-pay anmount. Consequently, a person could get a
rai se but take home | ess pay.

TAPE 01-51, SIDE B

YVONNE CHASE, Deputy Commi ssioner of the Departnent of Education
and Early Developnent, said M. Hoback’'s description of the
“cliff” effect is very accurate. It is a problemthat nany states
have grappled with. Oegon is one state that noved to elimnate
those cliffs. A working group has been review ng the problem and
expects to elimnate the “cliff” effect in Alaska by next July.
The working group is facing a couple of challenges: it is trying
to make sure that it can be acconplished for the individuals with
the lowest incone while maintaining cost neutrality. She
believes the working group has designed a system to acconplish
that and will take regulations to the state board at the end of
this nonth for public comrent. Ri ght now, a |owincone person
may pay 3 percent of childcare costs while the state pays a 97
percent subsidy. A 50-cent per hour raise may change the equation
so that the state subsidy drops to 85 percent. The State of
Oregon inplenented a system where the person is given a couple of
nonths of extra assistance when he or she noves from public
assistance to get on their feet. In addition, a sliding scale
with a curve is used. At the same tinme, the top end of the scale
needs to be reviewed to determ ne at what point a person’s incone
is sufficient to nove out of the program DCEED | ooked at a
broad overview of the caseload in the Palner-Wasilla area and
found that public assistance clients needed a |ower subsidy as
their wages increased.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN said in sone cases, it would not be worth
accepting a salary increase so she thinks the changes wll be
great. She reaffirmed that this change wll require no
| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said it is his desire that whatever tracking

system is used to qualify a person for benefits be used to
qualify a person for other progranms so that the person doesn’t

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- Novenber 9, 2001



have to go on a pilgrinmage from departnent to departnent. He
said he would |ike to see departnents transmt electronically and
plans to follow up on that issue.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said she believes creating a seam ess process
for state program eligibility will be a priority over the next
few years.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER CHASE agreed that it is sonething DOEED needs
to ook at and, in discussing the issue with M. Nordlund, she
believes they have a solution that will not only be sean ess but
will drastically reduce the need for the client to appear in
person. She explained that as the parent noves from being a
client of public assistance toward self-sufficiency they would
nove into a different childcare subsidy system if it is still
needed. An interagency process could take place wthout the
client seeing nuch of that novenent.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Hoback to continue discussing the
Institute’ s recomendati ons.

M5. HOBACK said the next recommendation is to revise the policy
and practices for treating individuals limted by incapacity from
full participation in work activities and require nmental health
and substance abuse treatnent when needed. She believes the
agency is working to change this policy. The Institute recomrends
that if a doctor says a person is incapacitated, the exenption be
to the level of capacity so that, for exanple, the person m ght
still be capable to work part-tine. People with nental health
drug or al cohol issues should be required to undergo treatnent as
a part of that plan.

SENATOR TAYLOR noted that the way the regulations are now
witten, an exenption is provided so that substance abusers do
not have to conply. He said that is one of the nost backward
policies he has ever heard of.

MR. NORDLUND said the confusion stens fromthe fact that when the
regul ati ons were adopted, DHSS didn’'t want to require substance
abusers to participate in work activity because they woul d not be
good enpl oyees. However, the regulations did not require
participation in a treatnent program that is the change that
wi |l be made.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if that regul atory change is being nade now.

MR NORDLUND said it is.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- Novenber 9, 2001



M5. HOBACK continued and explained the next recomrendation
requires clients who claim a disability to file for federal
disability benefits. The Suppl enental Security Incone (SSl)
program is federally funded. If, in fact, a person is too
disabled to participate in a work program that person should be
required to file for those benefits.

MR. NORDLUND indicated that policy is being changed. He added
that the SSI benefits are a little nore generous than ATAP
benefits and not time limted.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if ATAP benefits wll be cutoff if the
client does not apply for SSI disability status.

MR. NORDLUND said it will probably be an elenent of their famly
self-sufficiency plan so that anyone who does not conply wth
that plan could get sanctioned. He cautioned that these are
truly the neediest of clients so DHSS would want to nake sure
they do not fall through the cracks.

SENATOR TAYLOR expressed concern that 65 to 70 percent of SS
applicants will be denied because the federal governnment has
stringent standards for that program He cautioned that
requi renent may not provide any significant help to them or to
the state.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said the fact they are denied SSI paynents woul d
not disqualify themfor state benefits.

MR. NORDLUND said that is correct and added that nany people who
are denied are accepted on appeal. DHSS would just want to nake
sure they go through the application process.

M5. HOBACK said the |last recommendation is to reduce the 12-nonth
exenption period for parents of infants to 16 weeks. The parental
leave law in Alaska allows up to 16 weeks of l|eave. It is
i nconsistent that ATAP clients are not required to do anything
for 12 nonths. Mst states have reduced the exenption period to
the anmount provided in their parental |eave |aws.

MR. NORDLUND said DHSS is pursuing that change in regulation as
wel | . He pointed out that change will create an increased need
for childcare, which is not easily available for infants.

DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER CHASE stated the difficulty of finding infant

care and childcare during non-traditional hours will have to be
remedi ed. That renmedy mght require providing incentives for
provi ders.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- Novenber 9, 2001



CHAI RWOVAN GREEN acknow edged that dilema in the Mat-Su Vall ey.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER CHASE said she believes that nost of the
providers who are not licensed could be licensed fairly easily.
DCEED has also been working to reduce the anmount of paperwork
i nvol ved.

SENATOR TAYLOR said childcare is a critical conmponent of welfare
reform which is why he is very concerned about current policy.
H's district has actually |ost daycare providers because of that
policy. He is seeing fewer children placed in daycare while
DOEED s policy is to enhance and i ncrease daycare facilities.

DEPUTY COMM SSI ONER CHASE offered to review the specifics of
Senator Taylor’s district but noted that slight nodifications
were made to the staffing ratios. DCEED did go back and nake
sone adjustnents so she believes the final regulations that were
adopted did not contain the nunbers that Senator Tayl or expressed
concern about. DOEED al so provided incentives and increases for
|l i censed providers who care for infants and toddl ers.

CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked if they need to nold sonething a little
different for the childcare piece since it is not K-12.

DEPUTY COW SSI ONER CHASE replied that they are working through
that in the departnment and are |ooking at readiness and safety
for children.

MR. NORDLUND said they are in the process of doing intensive
staffing as the first famlies to hit the 60-nonth limt wll do
so next July. Each client needs a case nmanager, eligibility
technician and a soci al worker.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked about the geographic factor. He asked if
DHSS assunmes clients don't have to find work because there just
isn't any work out there. He had the feeling that the only people
who woul d be cut off of welfare are folks in Wangell, Petersburg
and Ketchikan and that a lot of people out in the villages
woul dn’t be cut off.

MR. NORDLUND replied that the geographic distinction is in
federal law and says that Indian reservations and Al aska Native
villages with effective unenploynent rates over 50 percent and
famlies living in those villages, Native or not, are exenpt from

the five-year limt. They are still required to pursue self-
sufficiency activities, like sonme community work experience.
There is limted effectiveness in how well they apply that

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- Novenber 9, 2001



policy.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked how to get classified as a Native village,
because that's what his district needs.

MR. NORDLUND replied that they are the villages |isted under
ANCSA.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented on the disproportionate aspects of
ANCSA.

MR. NORDLUND said this adm nistration played virtually no role in
that. It was a federal decision driven nore by reservations in
the Lower 48. Qur congressional delegation nmade sure Al askan
villages were included. It is recognized by nany people in the
Nati ve conmmunity as a doubl e-edged sword. He added there is a | ot
nore they could do to get folks in the villages to contribute to
the community, by using the school districts for instance.

An unidentified male speaker said with that in mnd, he favors
performance standards for staff and performance based contracting
so that enployees are rewarded for the nunber of job contracts
rather than the nunber of cases they handle.

MR. NORLUND said they take those things to heart and those are
the things they are nost enthusiastic about in this report. They
plan to hire a consultant to help inprove their case nanagenent
system One of the key issues is to establish true performance
measures that work with associ ated penalti es and bonuses.

VS. HOBACK said these issues really have to do wth
accountability and M. Nordlund has been very receptive. She
t hought they could increase the utilization of [indisc] training
in the villages and nore community service things. She thought
t hey should nerge the food stanp programinto the DPH policy unit
because there is a difference in philosophies in the two
departnents around the inportance of enploynent. The easiest way
to have a common phil osophy woul d be to nmerge those units.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if any state distributes welfare benefits
in the formof no-interest |oans versus grants.

MR. NORDLUND said he didn't know of anything like that. M.
Hoback said she didn't either, but sone states offer |owinterest
housing loans as incentives to people as opposed to the cash
grant program

SENATOR TAYLOR t hanked Ms. Hoback and the Anerican Institute for

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- Novenber 9, 2001



Ful | Enpl oynent for everything they had done and M. Nordlund and
his staff. He believed they have nmde a conscientious and
professional effort to figure out a way around sone of these
probl ens.

9:19 a.m

M5. KAREN PEARSON, Director, D vision of Public Health, DHSS,
introduced Dr. Beth Funk, physician and manager of Infectious
Di sease Control, and Dr. Lynn Lucher, Ph.D, who does |lab tests on
all specinmens that have come to the DHSS |ab. She thanked the
| egi slature for helping DHSS get a new lab. Wthout it, their
speci nens woul d have been sent to another state and put in line
when they were trying to figure out how to let communities know
what to do in case of a bio-terrorismattack

TAPE 01-52, SIDE A
9:49 a. m

M5. PEARSON said | ocal communities don’t have to know who all of
the players are. They support the 24/7 operation of the
Emergency Coordinating Center because it is a central point of
contact any tinme of the day or night. However, in the process of
dealing wwth the bio-terrorism threat, the legislature needs to
make sure that it doesn't "drop the ball" on other diseases. They
need to discuss what sort of mninum capacity needs to be
mai nt ai ned in Fairbanks, so that if the Anchorage |ab went down,
anot her woul d be avail abl e.

She said the public perception of the public health system has
been changing with the events of 9/11. The system in Al aska has
been stretched very thin since then and DHSS has a 50 percent
vacancy rate in staff positions. The job is getting done, but
di scussi ons are needed.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked her if the vacancy rate is due to
attrition.

M5. PEARSON answered it's because of the lag in salaries; 50
percent neans seven positions - |laboratory RNs, a tech and
m crobi ol ogists 1, 2, and 3. She explained that to deal with the
situation, DHSS has gone into an energency node and created
exenpt tenporary positions. It can raise salaries a bit, do sone
serious recruiting and not "burn out"” and |lose the staff it has.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if staff is on contract.
M5. PEARSON replied that they are tenporary positions.
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked what the typical salary is.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- Novenber 9, 2001



M5. PEARSON replied range 14 - 16 with 18 being the top. Those
are pretty | ow ranges when the | ow range has a Ph.D.

CHAI RMOVAN CGREEN asked if they have requested a salary study be
done.

M5. PEARSON replied that DHSS just requested one from the
adm ni strati on and hopes to have it done within a year.

CHAI RAMOVAN  GREEN asked if it would be a statew de enployee
revi ew.

M5. PEARSON replied that the request cane from DHSS, but she
understands that it would | ook at every departnment with people in
that cl assification.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN commrented that a legislator’s salary equates to
a range 8.

M5. PEARSON responded, "Well then, we'll all work on this
t oget her."

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN said her concern is that bio-terrorism could
happen, but it mght not. In the neantine, TB and other
i nfectious diseases, which could be the -equivalent of bio-
terrorism - especially in Al aska where sone populations are in
third-world conditions, are on the increase. She asked how to
make sure the state is at |east staying even with those.

M5. PEARSON said that is a good question. DHSS tried to address
that |ast year because it does not believe it has the basic
capacity to respond to all the infectious disease in Al aska or to
do testing and checking to prevent outbreaks. She said DHSS woul d
be asking for this funding and terrorist funding at the sane
tinme.

SENATOR TAYLOR said that for the past 20 years, Al aska has had
energency response teans and a trenendous anmount of bureaucracy
to make sure that every token individual wthin a community that
m ght have any l|evel of authority would be included within the
pl an, which was generated by the Exxon Valdez incident. He
t hought that they should be able to apply information from that
process, |ike comrunication systens. He asked if she had thought
about using systens already in place.

M5. PEARSON replied that everyone is at the table with this
issue. The EMS people have been a part of the bio-terrorism
pl anning team A lot of things are in place, but people need new
and additional training to be able to respond to sonething
different.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- Novenber 9, 2001



SENATOR TAYLOR said his other concern is if an unforeseen event

occurs, Alaskans are so dependent on air travel, i.e., the
hospital in Ketchikan gets medications delivered every other day
by airplane. Hs staff found that no one coordinates

transportation of blood and ot her nedical supplies in Southeast.

DR. FUNK said they are working on those kinds of things now She
works with one program within the section of epidemology wth
the infectious disease program which includes TB and other
di seases |ike gastrointestinal flu borne illness outbreaks or
hepatitis. They have worked for the last two years wth other
sections in the Division of Public Health, other partners
t hroughout the state and other systens, Anchorage in particular,
to start setting up an infrastructure for responding to bio-
terrorism Everyone was caught by surprise.

The Division of Public Health has found that the relationships
they have been working on are really paying off. At the State
Emer gency Coordi nation Center (SECC) she hel ped conplete a survey
and wite up to send into the Departnent of Justice about the
infrastructure for energency and public health response in
comrunities statewide. As a result, they wll receive $1.2
mllion from the Departnent of Justice for comunications and
ot her emergency equi pnent.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if anyone is assessing private industry.

DR. FUNK said to her understanding, not nany private contractors
have level B suits needed to go into a chemcally contam nated
area. Those are issues they will have to focus on.

An unidentified male said the question is why would Al aska be
attacked. He answered it is because of the oil pipeline and our
mlitary capacity. He said we have to ask what will make us safer
and what will work best with Alaska’ s cool tenperatures and w nd
patterns.

DR. FUNK said that every climte has sone of those issues, but
even if Alaska isn't a target, we have to "be in the gane"
because of the nobility of the popul ation. A biol ogical agent has
an i ncubation period of a few days to several weeks.

DR. LUCHER said her job has been to meke sure the state
| aboratory is prepared to do the testing necessary to confirmthe
presence of bacteria distributed by CDC as being those of
greatest concern for intentional release in bio-terrorism Every
state lab has a CDC trainee to do tests, but it's up to her
office to train other key personnel to test as well. They also
must to get the word out to hospital |aboratories because, in the
case of a covert release, they would do the initial patient

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- Novenber 9, 2001



speci nen work. This new focus has increased and inproved their
relationship with other clinical |aboratories in the state.

One problem from a disease surveillance standpoint, occurs when
specinens or bacteria isolated from specinmens get sent out of
state to another reference lab, it is difficult to capture
inmportant information. This is a problem in sonme parts of the
state nore than others. [If DHSS builds on the terrorist
initiative to inprove its working relationship with clinical
| aboratories, they will hopefully get nore specinens that shoul d
be comng to them anyway and allow DHSS to keep better track of
di sease incidents in the state.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if there isn't a practical difficulty in
achieving that since Southeast has historically shipped its
speci nens south because it's cheaper.

MS. LUCHER said that is true, and if they can't inprove increased
specinen flow to the state lab, they want to at |east nake sure
the information conmes to them or epidemology, especially
regarding certain types of food borne diseases like e. col
0157h7. One other thing she hel ped work on at the state lab is
nol ecul ar subtyping of bacteria because it's inportant to know if
five cases are really caused by the sane organismor not. Getting
key bacteria would definitely inprove disease surveill ance.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked what kind of networks are available to
communi cate with the private sector in an energency.

M5. LUCHER answered that the best exanple to illustrate that
concept is the way they are wrking to engage hospital
| aboratories in looking for bio-terrorism agents. Hospital |abs
can take cultures, reduce the choices, and then send it to the
DHSS | ab where the bacteria can be identified.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked how many hospital |abs are in Al aska.

M5. LUCHER replied there are about 26 distributed across the
state.

SENATOR TAYLOR renmarked that everything they are talking about
today i s dependent upon an airplane transportation systemthat is
wor ki ng. He assuned they had sone sort of protocol set up.

M5. LUCHER replied they do with the mlitary.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN said they are doing a wonderful job and
encouraged themto keep up the good work.

11: 36 a. m

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- Novenber 9, 2001



MR. DAVID PIERCE, Health Planner, said he is also known as the
CON (CON) Coordinator and that the CON office has been active
since 1976. Mbst states established CON offices in the 1970s; 74

percent of states still have CON prograns.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN interrupted him to say the reason they are
talking about it at all today is because it's tied in to
Medi cai d.

MR. Pl ERCE expl ained that sonme of the big issues CON deals with
are rational devel opment of health care, quality of care, access,
decreasi ng unnecessary duplication and cost containnent. It also
has a public involvenent conponent where people who are involved
in the projects have input into the process. Mst projects are
approved, but over the past 20 years about 500 nursing honme beds
were proposed and not built. If all those beds had been built, it
woul d save about $60 mllion per year.

O her states |like Texas and California contract for certain
nunbers of beds rather than review projects as they cone in.
O her states have also put noratoriunms on construction to limt
growm h. CON prograns vary by state depending on the need. One of
the key issues to think about in Alaska is that the snal
popul ati ons are served.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked himto explain that further.

MR PIERCE replied that sone types of care wll only be
accessible in the larger conmmunities. Al aska doesn't have a CAT
scanner, a type of radiology that detects cancer.

TAPE 02-52, SIDE B

There nust be a certain level of use to be able to support a
pi ece of equipnment financially. Al so, certain types of services,
| i ke open-heart surgery, need to be used enough to naintain the
skill level of the physicians or there will be nore conplications
with those surgeries.

MR. PI ERCE said that approximtely 86 percent of the nursing hone
bed care is Medicaid related. The average cost of a day in a
nursing honme statewide is $306. So, basically, every 10 nursing
home beds is going to cost $1 mllion to Medicaid.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked for an exanple of [indisc] versus |ong-
term care.

MR. PIERCE replied the Mary Conrad Center has 90 beds and they
are all full.

CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked if anyone who wal ks through the door and

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- Novenber 9, 2001



qualifies for Medicaid can stay in that bed.

MR. PIERCE replied no. There are two kinds of paynents. The ot her
14 percent of people are private pay or Veterans Adm nistration.

CHAIl RMOVAN CGREEN asked if they are not in the CON process and
Mary Conrad needed 10 nore beds, Medicaid would have the ability
to say the beds weren’'t approved therefore they woul dn't pay.

MR. PIERCE said no, because once a place is licensed as a
Medi caid provider, it is able to take patients.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked why they woul d then need a CON.

M5. JANET CLARKE, Departnent of Health and Social Services, said
M. Pierce was tal king about |icensing, which cones after the CON
process, which conmes prior to construction. Long-term care has
been the concern of the Al askan legislature, which declared a
noratorium on it for a nunber of years. "Wen David says that
once you're licensed, if someone cones in they are eligible for
that is correct, but the CON process is where the review
happens. "

Typically, a person needing skilled | ong-termnursing care is not
eligible right away because they have to spend down sone of their
assets.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented that we have to bankrupt themfirst.
M5. CLARKE said that was right.

CHAIl RWOVAN GREEN said she didn't want to be protected by the
government all the tine and she finds it strange that soneone in
an office in Juneau can determ ne how many CAT scanners can be in
the state of Al aska. A hospital should be able to go out and buy
one - and go broke if that's what happens.

M5. CLARKE replied that a few years ago the |egislature passed
anendnents to the CON | aw maki ng care nore stringent requirenments
for long-term care - because the |egislature was concerned about
the inplications for Medicaid.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN said there had been three nmmjor attenpts to
revise the process.

M5. CLARKE said she understands what the Senator is getting at,
but :

VWhat | was trying to get at is that the CON program as

far as considering cost inplications to Medicaid -
based on the law - can only do that for |ong-termcare.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- Novenber 9, 2001



For the other parts, acute care or CAT scans, they
can't consider the inplications for Medicaid or cost.
It's based on need and access, etc. The way the
| egi slature has structured the law, there are two
different review standards, and | think, because of the
i nplications for Medicaid.

MR. PIERCE said one inportant thing to renmenber is that there's
only one market in the state, Anchorage, where there's
conpetition between hospitals. In nost of the other communities
there is one facility. In these cases, if soneone goes bankrupt,
you end up with people not having anything.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he wanted to get away from the Medicaid
aspects of this.

Way should anyone have to go through the process if
economcally they believe it's a good investnment for
themto put in an MRl or should they tell all patients
in Ketchikan you can't have an MRl here. You need to
buy a $350 - $400 airplane ticket and fly up to Juneau
and use Juneau's machine, which, by the way, hasn't
been approved yet, either.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if he knew of any case where people had
been deni ed access to Providence.

MR. PIERCE replied that he didn't know of any circunstance |ike
t hat .

M5. CLARKE renm nded everyone that CON applies to capital
construction of over $1 million; it's not for operating costs.

MR. PIERCE said a lot of health care is nmoving from the in-
patient to the out-patient areas. He said, "Hospitals do a
variety of things that some of them get nore noney than what they
pay out in costs for the service."

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked for an exanpl e.

MR. PIERCE replied a critical care unit or an ICU or maybe in-
patient services.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN commented that this was nore di scouraging to her
t han encour agi ng.

MR. RICK JOHNSQON, Valley Hospital Operating Board of Directors,

said he thought what M. Pierce was trying to say is that there
is a concern about "cherry picking." He said:

SENATE HES COW TTEE -21- Novenber 9, 2001



I f you open up an out-patient surgery center and are in
direct conpetition with Valley Hospital where we have
to accept a reduced rate for Medicaid and Medicare,
then all those services are going to go el sewhere where
we make sone noney to be able to support our conmunity
hospital - that's going to be gone.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said everyone understands that. She was
concerned that hospitals operate under a different set of rules
when it cones tinme to nake their reports to the federa
government and when they pay taxes.

MR. JOHNSON said that was correct.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN sai d she was perfectly willing to have his Board
make deci sions and not have an office telling them what they can
and can't do.

MR. JOHNSON asked what happens when they don't have a CON process
and soneone opens up a shop "out here" and takes everything away
from Vall ey Hospital that nakes noney.

"' mnot saying that we shouldn't be efficient and being
able to conpete, but we need to be able to do that -
but they take everything el se away from Vall ey Hospital
and we don't have an opportunity, because we have to
take everybody that wal ks through the door. W have to
take Medicare and Medicaid patients at a |ower
rei nbursenment level and the only way that we can
support ourselves is through profit centers. These
other folks that open up a facility out here, they
don't have to take Medicaid or Medicare.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked:

Who's to say that they don't want to take |ow pay, co-
pay private - just like the whole raft of assortnent
that you ... Are you saying that because the |aw
doesn't require themto do that?

MR. JOHNSON said that was correct.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN said naybe that is the point they need to
address. She found it strange that he would turn over his
deci sion-maeking ability to an agency in state governnent.

MR, JOHNSON agreed and said it is a strange paradox.

12: 25

SENATE HES COW TTEE -22- Novenber 9, 2001



SENATOR TAYLOR expressed concern about the different rates
charged for the sane service. He noted:

Because they have a ticket to play, they are the only
gane in town and that CON becones how do we protect our
nonopoly to make certain that nobody el se does cone in
and cherry pick. There's never been a |evel playing
field; there's not going to be one.

MR. JOHNSON r esponded:

But, we have requirenents, but how do we correct those
federal requirenents, the state requirenents that we
have.W only get x anount of reinbursement on those
particular things and we have to accept everybody who
wal ks through the door and sonebody can go down the
street and open up a shop and they don't have to take
t hem

SENATOR TAYLOR said, "You have ny conplete synpathy; I
understand. | was just trying to clarify the reality of where we
are at today."

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said she thought they could set aside the
federal requirenents. She doesn't have any del usi on about naking
any substantive change in the CON process.

MR. JOHNSON said he is just looking for a |level playing field.
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN said the problemis how to get there.

MR, JOHNSON said their strategic plan is to build a new facility
to double their capacity and he doesn't want to have to go
through the CON process. He is concerned that other people can

build a facility and not have the sanme requirenents that his
hospi tal does.

MR. PIERCE said they are trying to educate adm nistrators on how
to get up to speed on the CON process.

SENATOR DAVI S asked if 74 percent of the states use the CON. M.
Johnson said that is correct.

SENATOR DAVI S asked if he knew what the other states did who did
not use that process and what kind of problens did they have.

MR, JOHNSON said he could get her sone infornmation.
SENATOR DAVIS said information on things that are working in
other states mght help the situation in Al aska.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -23- Novenber 9, 2001



M5. CLARKE said sone other states mght contract for a certain
nunber of beds and that's all Medicaid will pay for.

SENATOR DAVI S r esponded:

Are we going to address the Medicaid issue here or are
we going to address the CON issue. The Medicaid is
sonething we can fix ourselves, because it's the
state... The CON has to do with the hospitals building
new buildings or not allowing soneone else to buy a
pi ece of equipnent. That's where the problemis.

MS. CLARKE responded that the CON program was devel oped in the
“70s to look at health planning and that's still the construct of
the state statute. "It's a health planning process and actually
some comunities find it helpful..."”

She said they could give the conmttee information on what is
working in other states, but they didn't have it with themtoday.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said he talked to some doctors who said if
they are given tax free status, they would be glad to take all
clients.

SENATOR TAYLOR said the federal governnment provides a system of
public health and a system of veterans health and native health
centers. Each of those is a formof socialized nedicine with the
doctors working on a salary. The private enterprise systemstarts
to get involved with the CON process. He asked if the CON
application had been approved for the Sitka hospital.

M5. CLARKE said they are always |ooking for ways to inprove the
system

SENATOR DAVIS said she would like to see sone recommendati ons
from her Departnent.

M5. CLARKE replied that she didn't have recommendati ons because
they are in the mdst of inplenenting regulations fromthe |ast
maj or change to the long-term care part of the CON statute from
1999. She said they received a ot of comments and they woul d be
renoticing those regulations. She would be interested in talking
about the rest of the program however.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said she really appreciated everyone's coments
and asked people to send her their opinions and suggestions on
this issue.

MR. ROB GOULD, Fairbanks Menorial Hospital, said:

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 24- Novenber 9, 2001



The cherry picking is what really concerns the
facilities. The fact of the matter is, | understand we
are tal king about Medicaid, but nost facilities or npst
people who want to put in a surgery center or an M,
they aren't doing it to target Medicare and Medicaid,
because those payers do not pay costs. They want
private insurance where they can negotiate and bill
what they think is reasonable and get a reinbursenent
that either nmakes a profit or at |east pays costs. So,
one of the big issues is that for health care
facilities and 1'Il just take out a hospital, for
exanple, and an MRI. Let's say it was open and
realistically for around $1 million you can get an MR,
give or take $100,000. If there was not a CON required
for over $1 mllion and there were five in this
comunity, we would not be able to have an MRl at this
facility. The others are not going to be open 24 hours
a day.

W are required to take patients 24 hours a day; we are
required to take every patient regardless of their
ability to pay and that's where the playing field is
not fair. It's not an Alaskan issue; it's a societal
i ssue of how are you going to level the playing field.
Nobody would do long-term care beds; nobody would do
i n-patient beds, because they don't pay for thensel ves.
The overhead is too great; you have to have other
services to conplenent them The problemis that there
are very few industries in the United States where the
governnment can dictate what they're going to pay you.
If you're going to buy 100 trucks, you don't go to Ford
and say we're going to pay you $50 per truck; they go
to Ford and GM and five others and do a bidding
process; but this is such a large portion of our
popul ation that the governnent is paying for that they
can't do that - especially in small rural comunities
of which a majority of Alaska is. They don't have that
ability and you |oose sone critical services in these
rural conmunities when you let people start cherry
pi cki ng.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked himfor an exanple of a small conmunity.

MR. GOULD replied that Fairbanks is considered urban, but they
don't have the volune for cardiac services. They do not have
enough heart cases for a cardiac surgeon to renmain proficient.
H's hospital is open 24 hours a day and staffed to accept a
patient at any time. Surgery centers shut their doors at 5:00 and

SENATE HES COW TTEE -25- Novenber 9, 2001



patients with conplications from a surgery would end up on his
door st ep.

TAPE 01-53, SIDE A

MR, GOULD said if they go through the CON process, it's because
they want the Medicaid dollars. But they really want the private
i nsurance conpanies that pay the majority of the costs, because
governnment only pays about 80 percent of costs. Private insurance
conpani es pay about 125 percent of costs. He stated:

So, any of wus that are insured by insurance are
subsi di zing anybody that is on the governnent system
whet her it be Medicaid or Medicare, because of the fact
it has becone so expensive it is very difficult to pay
costs when you are such a large payer. W're |lucky. W
have a young heal t hy popul ati on conpared to nany states
and our Medicare population is very low.. But it 1is
difficult in those kind of communities to operate where
you are only getting Medicare rei nbursenent.

MR. GOULD said he is having trouble staffing his own roons right
now. |If another place opens, they have to find the staff for it.
He guesses that they will try to pay higher wages and take from
Fai r banks Menori al Hospital. He thought they needed nost help in
wor k force devel opnent.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN sai d she expected a letter fromhim but didn't
expect to get letters from patients who signed the form on the
counter at his hospital.

MR. GOULD said he was not aware of that.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN said she wondered whether the hospita
associations chose to provide services that are actually
functions of the social service armof the State of Al aska or of
the comunity. She didn't want them to use that as ammunition
agai nst soneone el se providing conpetition.

MR. GOULD said, "W don't even have an HMO in Al aska, because
there is no way to have a profitable HMOin this state.. W don't
have a | arge enough popul ation to spread the risk."

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if HMOs are forbidden by |Iaw in Al aska.
MR. GOULD replied no. He understood that two conpanies had asked
for the |license package, but haven't responded. Experts say that

it takes between a half mllion and one mllion people in an HMO
plan for it to be financially viable.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 26- Novenber 9, 2001



MR. RICK JOHNSON said he is also an insurance agent and that HMOs
are not prohibited, but there isn't enough popul ation.

12:36 - 1:36 p.m LUNCH BREAK

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN recapped that they are trying to see how
Medicaid works within the greater schenme of lots of things that
i mpact costs of doing business in Alaska. One thing that
continues to conme up is access to insurance for the general
popul ation. Policy nmakers often have to mandate coverage. They
tried to find a private plan for Kid Care, but weren't able to do
that. Currently, there is legislation at the federal |evel that
may increase that program which again increases Mdicaid and
reduces our pool in the State of Alaska. If Congress decides at
sone point they don't want to pay, who picks up that difference,
she asked. She said the State of Al aska already has the ACI A and
wondered if the definition of ACI A could be expanded.

MR. CECIL BYKERK, Executive Vice President and Chief Actuary,
Mut ual of Omaha, said he is also Chairman of ACIA and has been
wth it since 1992. He said that ACIA had been reasonably
successful at providing coverage for a nodest nunber of
i ndividuals who had been unable to get insurance. They began
issuing policies in 1993, grew to 175 people in the mddle of
1995 and grew at a very slow rate after that. Beginning in late
1998, they began to grow nore rapidly and in late 2000, they
started al nost junping. They are not conpletely sure of all the
factors that inpact them

However, nore carriers are getting out of the
i ndi vi dual market, not just in Alaska, but nation-w de.
Heal t hcare costs and, as a result of that, premuns are
going up dramatically across the country and in Al aska
as well. W're routinely seeing in the individual
mar ket prem um increases of 20 - 25 and in some cases
30 percent a year on a premiumthat was already fairly
hefty. W have that sort of market environnent that is
out t here. Al aska has obvi ously many uni que
characteristics. | think that the individual private
i nsurance market place in Alaska is probably for the
nost part sonewhat [indisc] of what's going on around
the country.

ACIA is the nechanism by which the state net the
federal law that's commonly called H PA, which attenpts
to provide affordability to individuals who had
enpl oyer coverage or church coverage or governnent
coverage and were | oosing that coverage for one reason
or another. Those individuals can conme in to ACA
W thout being a high risk individual as a result of

SENATE HES COW TTEE -27- Novenber 9, 2001



that approach in that |egislation. W have sone people
com ng in under that arrangenent.

MR. BYKERK sai d they have an annual board neeting at which people
testify and it is rewarding when they can provide coverage. Even
t hough the individuals are paying a premum for their coverage,
the intent is not to conpete with the private market, but to add
onto it with people who are otherw se uni nsurabl e.

However, besides paying that premum there's a
shortfall, which is picked up by assessing all of the
i nsurance conpanies that provi de  maj or medi cal
insurance in the state. That assessnment base is |limted
to insured plans. Enployers that use self-funded plans
do not contribute to the assessnment. W are only
allowed to actually assess on the basis of the actual
I nsurance prem umns. W currently in Al aska are
assessing the <carriers around 1.5 percent of the
premum Wile on the surface this is 1.5 percent that
the insurance carriers have to pay out, in essence it's
1.5 percent of additional premum that the insureds

will end up paying - because they have to in effect pay
the bill. So, we have the phenonenon that the healthier
i nsured people are to sonme degree footing the bill for

the uninsured. That's the way our high risk pools work
across the country and that's how their intended.

However, the fact that Al aska has reached 1.5 percent
in the prem um assessnment is of concern to the Board.
Typically, insurance carriers across the country feel
that they are well to have assessnents get to about one
percent. They really feel that above that they're
really starting to add on additional premiumto their
custoners, which the customers are already paying
enough. That is one area of concern for us. There are
mechani snms that perhaps we can address. As all of you
know, ARI SA prevents us from assessing self insured
ARI SA plans, but there are sone nechani sns that two or
three other states have used that have gotten around
that so that those states have a broader assessnent
base. In a different tine we would be happy to expand
on how some of that is structured.

Wth respect to managi ng the association, we are making
every attenpt to provide good coverage, but at the sane
time trying to manage that coverage. W've had a couple

of law changes over the years - the nobst recent one
which was to allow us to negotiate discounts in sone
cases for a preferred provider. Networks - we

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 28- Novenber 9, 2001



i npl enented that and we're trying to use that to
further reduce our overall expenditures or costs of
rei mbursenment for the services that are provided to our
policyholders. So, the Board is fully aware of all of
t he costs.

Just to go on for a second further, | mght add to how
high risk pools mght be used to address sone of the
ot her issues nentioned in the introduction. Sone states
have subsidies for individuals who can't afford the
premum but it still allows sone of those individuals
with some subsidization to at |east be an insured
person rather than being an uninsured person and a
responsibility of the state.

l"minvolved with the Board in Montana that has passed
a law that allows the Board to seek funds other than
state funds to try and support | owinconme subsidies. W
have made sone inroads wth the federal governnent that
are now questionable because of all the other things
that are going on whether we're going to get sone seed
noney for that. | think there are possibilities there.
O course, it still comes back to the comrents if you
are dependent on federal noney, it can always be pulled
out from under you...

CHAl RNWNOMAN GREEN asked what ACI A neans.

MR BYKERK said it is the Al aska Conprehensive |nsurance
Association. He said it was originally an Act.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if it could be expanded to becone nore of
a high-risk pool with the ability to conbine with private sector
insurance to cover people who mght otherwi se need additional
Medi cai d.

MR. BYKERK answered that ACI A could be expanded to cover a nunber
of segnents of the population. Typically uninsured people are
that way for two reasons - one is that they're uninsurable and
the other is that they can't afford the premum ACIA is a place
for them to be enrolled which could be done by a subsidization
process. If they are healthy enough to get insurance from the
private sector but don't have the noney to pay for it, he
suggests that they be subsidized to buy in the private market,
not by ACIA. It is set up to nanage people who are unhealthy. To
the extent they would subsidize sonmeone who is healthy through
ACIA, they would be conpeting with the private nmarket. The
private market wants to sell theminsurance, but at sonme point if
a person becones unhealthy enough that they are uninsurable,
that's when ACI A should have a role. There is a small nunber of

SENATE HES COW TTEE -29- Novenber 9, 2001



uni nsureds who just aren't interested.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said a nunber of non-profit witers who
contract with the state to provide services are having trouble
attracting and keeping qualified staff and the issue is not being
able to provide health insurance for the non-profits. He, Karen
Perdue and Conmi ssioner Duncan wanted to find a way to qualify
| i ke-state enployees. He thought it was a good idea, but he
didn't know if there was a downside from the private industry
poi nt of view.

MR. BYKERK said he m ght not be the right person to comment, but
if there's no other vehicle to provide them coverage, one would
have to think of that.

MR. JOHNSON said he is on the Board of Health Underwiters as
well as the Valley Hospital in Wasilla. As far as ACI A goes, he
asked if they have access only by high-risk personnel.

MR. BYKERK replied except by those people who would be comng in
as HPA eligible or federally eligible individuals. This
basically means if they are with an enployer for 18 nonths, they
could cone in to ACI A whet her they are uninsurable or not.

MR, JOHNSON asked if essentially everybody has access to health
care in the State of Alaska via insurance, ACIA or presenting to
t he energency room

MR. BYKERK responded that in general that's true.

MR, JOHNSON said there was sonme discussion about conpetition and
that Alaska is loosing insurance carriers and asked what could
hel p that.

MR. BYKERK replied that the Division of Insurance has created a
good environnent and that's not what is driving it away. He
t hought it was because a nunber of carriers in the United States
are getting out of the business conpletely. OQhers mght be
wi t hdrawi ng because they can't get enough business to provide the
overhead to stay here.

MR, JOHNSON said it is the perception of his over 1,500 clients
that health insurers are gougi ng consunmers and asked what kind of
income they are making from health i nsurance products in Al aska.

MR BYKERK said he couldn't limt hinself to the state of Al aska,

but his conpany | ost over $25 million on individual najor nedical
busi ness. Not every conpany is in that boat, but alnobst no one is
making nmuch of a profit. "Insurance conpanies aren't gouging

people, but the fact is that health care costs are just
skyrocketi ng everywhere ..."

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 30- Novenber 9, 2001



Their profit margin is 1 - 3 percent of gross premum He said
they weren't getting that and he didn't think very many carriers
were. One of the conpanies in the mdst of wthdrawing from
Al aska |l ost $50 million last year in the individual narket.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if people were getting nedical care
that they mght not elect to get if they were spending their own
noney and asked what the |egislature could do to help.

MR. BYKERK replied that there were nore and nore sophisticated
things. Last year the pharmaceuticals increased considerably. He
explained that in the year 2000, ACI A had 395 policy holders; 89
of which had a $5,000 deductible; 25 had a $10,000 deducti bl e;
107 had $1,500 deductible; and their |owest deductible of $500
was held by 31 people. He thought that people were trying to
carry their weight. He said they are losing the litigation on
deni al of services and certifications to do certain things to the
point where conpanies are gun-shy to deny a service because
they're afraid they're going to get sued whether they're at fault
of not. Doctors and hospitals are in the sane boat. If they don't
prescribe every possible drug and try every techni que or service,
they are potentially at risk for not doing their job.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if the tort reform legislation they
passed several years ago hel ped at all.

MR BYKERK said he didn't know.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON agai n asked what the |egislature could do to
hel p.

MR. BYKERK said he really didn't know the particulars on the
state of Al aska.

TAPE 01-53, SIDE B
2:17 p.m

In his conpany he is trying to encourage a (reater presence
because he thinks there is opportunity, but if ACIA could get a
broader base of assessnment that would hel p keep down the price of
i nsurance premumin the state.

MR. JOHNSON said that ACI A appeals to hima little bit. He said
that it is not a state funded program its nandated by law and is
funded by the insurance carriers here. This is reflected in
prem uns. The comm ttee needs to know that every tine there is a
state mandate requiring insurance conpanies to provide a certain
service, there is an attendant cost to everybody al ong the road.

Estimates for nmental health parity are about 1 percent and that

SENATE HES COW TTEE -31- Novenber 9, 2001



is way off base. It should be purchased by people who want that
service and not be passed to everyone.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked how other states get around the AR SA
restrictions of creating sources of prem umdollars.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN said they have time constraints and wll get
back to himon this issue. She also wanted to di scuss what worked
in other states and if there was another nechanism to provide
health care to the 20,000 children in Denali Kid Care.

MR. JOHNSON said he understood that federal funding for Denali
Kid Care would be dimnishing and asked if the State of Al aska
woul d pick up that share.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN i ndi cated she didn't think they woul d.

MR. JOHNSON said his inclination was to have a needs based
program that sonme folks could pursue at the state level to
provide funding for private insurance for those fol ks who are
wor ki ng, but can't quite afford health insurance coverage - at
| east a safety net program

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if that could be made into sonmething that
wor ked for not only children, but for young coupl es.

MR. JOHNSON replied that he thought it could, but they have hard
and steadfast rules right now with regard to Medicaid and incone
|l evels. "Either you're in or you're out.” He said he would be
happy to work with themon this.

M5. N COLE SALINAS, Aetna Accounts Executive, said they have
| ooking at form ng associations of small groups to let them band
together to access nore affordable health care.

CHAI RAOVAN GREEN said she is very concerned about resolving these
i ssues.

MR. BYKERK said that he would be available to help.

MR. JOHNSON said he has concerns about the conpetition in the
state of Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked what they coul d do.

MR. JOHNSON replied that they could get rid of the state nandates
or at |east make them optional. Those people who have the need
can pay the extra cost.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if nore tort reformwas needed.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -32- Novenber 9, 2001



MR. JOHNSON answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked what he thought about people getting
care that they really didn't need if they were paying for it
t hensel ves.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked about a co-pay option.

MR. JOHNSON said he thought that would be great and he thought a
co-pay on Medicaid would be great, higher than we have now.

This again is ny personal opinion. You ve got people
standing in line for a carton of cigarettes and they
only have to pay a $5 co-pay when they go to the
doctor’s office and they're the sane people. If they
can afford to pay for that, they can afford to pay a
hi gher co-pay on Medi cai d.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN sai d she appreciated their efforts and announced
that finished the presentations and she woul d not take questions.

MR. BOB LOHR, Division of Insurance, said he wanted to know if
they got the one-page fact sheet, which incorporates the
division's result from the 2000 survey on health insurance. In
this survey there is one insurer, Blue Cross, that provides
al nost 90 percent of the individual health insurance in Al aska.
Mutual of Omaha is next with about 9 percent. "The market is
hi ghly concentrated."

In the small enployer market, there are three insurers that
provi de nore than 85 percent of the insurance - Blue Cross, Aetna
and Principal. He said there are barriers to witing health
insurance in Alaska because basically it's a snmall renote
popul ation and adm nistrative costs are very high. It's a w de-
spread popul ation and |l ess than two-tenths of one percent of the
indermity market in the United States. It's hard to establish
rel ati onshi ps and contracts with health care providers. He said
that SB 37, that would allow collective negotiation by doctors,
is enmphatically not part of the solution; it would make things
much worse not better.

MR LOHR attenpted to explain the barriers to Alaskans for
pur chasi ng health i nsurance. ACI A coverage for the uninsurable is
an extrenely successful programand he wanted to thank M. Bykerk
for his involvenent init.

There are two insurers in the standard market and nany are not
able to afford the premuns. According to the nbst recent census
data, although it's not totally reliable, approximtely 19
percent of Alaskans in 2000 were uninsured and that nunber has
grown from previous years. Lack of affordability is the key

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 33- Novenber 9, 2001



reason why that's the case. He said there's no free lunch wth
health insurance. Direct or indirect prem um subsidies or other
assistance prograns are essential and he thought the private
i nsurance market is the best way to provide those. Prograns that
reinforce the nmarket are preferable to government run prograns.
M. Bykerk touched on a couple of specific ACIA type nechani sns
that could assist. The prem um assessnent rising to 1.5 percent
of total health insurance premuns that are subject to that
assessnment is a serious concern.

Having the cost of the uninsurable paid by the healthy
is kind of a death spiral. Wen you get to the 1.5
percent |level, you're seriously influencing the cost of
health care for everyone, which drives conpani es out of
the market. It's not being avoided; it's sinply being
paid by a very limted sector of the nmarket. If there
isn't sone way to broaden the base of that assessnent,
and there are a nunber of nodels out there that have
proven very successful in other states and | believe it
would be well worth the committee's time to exam ne
those and we woul d cooperate wth any kind of effort to
explore alternative mechanisnms to the direct assessnent
on individual health insurers.

CHAl RWNOMAN GREEN t hanked himand said the commttee would work to
resol ve these i ssues.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said that President Bush is talking about
tax credits for people who are meking contributions to health
i nsurance and urged the commttee to consider that.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN replied that he was | ooking at the wong person.
Expanding Kid Care to include famlies is the opposite of what
woul d bring about any long-term solution in the state. "I think
we could invest our noney to assist people locally in requiring
i nvol venent locally and do sonmething that gets people into
private coverage versus Medicaid.."

MR. LOHR said the Denali Conmission indicated its mandate had
been amended to focus on health facilities funding. If their
charge was further anmended to add the next step of going to
heal th program funding and dealing wth sonme of the intractable
probl ens they have just discussed, there would be funding from
the federal governnment with an Al askan specific solution being
devel oped.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN said they should have their staff get together
and work on | anguage for that.

M5. MARJORI E LI NDER said she is representing herself and tonorrow

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 34- Novenber 9, 2001



is her 57th birthday. She received a birthday present from her
heal t h insurance conpany - a notice saying that Decenber 15 she

woul d be paying $830.88 per nonth in premuns for a policy with a

%2,500 deductible. This is an increase in rates since May 2000 of
293. 57.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON said he assumed there was no change in her
cover age.

M5. LINDER said it was not related to that. She added that this
is nmore than her daughter pays for rent and second only to her
nortgage and twice as high as her food costs. After she has paid
her premuns and $2,500 deductible, she has paid $12,470.56
annually. "I have been contributing to the state since 1978 as a
sel f-enpl oyed person and | have faithfully paid all my bills to
Mut ual of Omaha and | amin really a tough situation..

She said she cannot afford to pay for additional health care.
Last year she had shoul der surgery and they declined to pay 40
percent of the bill. Mitual of Omha "suckered nme into a
particul ar pool at a reasonable rate in 1993." In May of 1996 she
only paid $188.13 per nonth; in April of 1997 she paid $226 and
they closed the pool. She said it was inportant to realize that
pools are tine sensitive and they get closed and decrease in
size. The insurance industry is defining the small pools; she is
not electing to get into a small pool. In 5.5 years, her prem uns
have gone up 441 percent.

MS. LINDER had an article from Al aska Econom ¢ Trends, June 2001
that showed the percent of change from the previous year for
medical care. It shows that in a year in which the percent of
nmedi cal care costs changed 2 percent in Al aska, her prem um was
driven up 30 percent. In a year in which the change was 4.3
percent, her premiumwent up 41 percent fromthe previous year.

I"'mreally trying to say there is sonething rotten in
[indisc.]. There is sonme problem we have in this
particular state that makes this really unfair,
unaffordable. As hard as | try and as hard as | work,
there is not nmuch of a way that | can afford to keep

goi ng.

She said she is turning to ACIA which has beconme the dunping
ground for folks like her. There really is no open market in
Al aska. She said she has to wait six nonths for her preexisting
conditions to be covered by ACIA. She wanted them to consider a
way they can have bigger pools of people like herself that are
not tine sensitive and are not age rel ated.

An insurance agent spoke up and said the insurance concept is
spreading of risk. In his office alone in health insurance, he

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 35- Novenber 9, 2001



has had a $1.2 million claim and an $800,000 claimin the |ast
ten years. That has to be spread out anobngst everybody else.
These clains were for unborn prenmature deliveries.

MS. LINDER said she didn't have maternity insurance. She wanted a
bi gger group that wasn't time or age sensitive.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN t hanked her for her testinony.

MR. ROCDVAN WLSON said he is a retired internist in Anchorage and
ran the Health Departnment in the ‘80s and it's a shane that the
United States hasn't figured out how to take care of its health
care. Most of the other industrialized nations have done so. It's
a shanme that Al aska doesn't figure out a way to take care of
everybody's health care.

TAPE 01-54, SIDE A
3:06 p. m

He said that |awnakers should devise a systemthat theoretically
woul d be uni ver sal

You woul dn't have to join it, but it would be there for
everybody. It would be a single payer system where all
medical bills went to a central clearinghouse and they
woul d turn around and within two weeks or |ess and pay
the bill. It would be a system that would allow full
free choice of who you want to go to and the hospital
and etc. It is a systemthat would be governed overall
by a budget. You've got to have a ceiling on things. If
you start to exceed the ceiling quarter by quarter as
these things are nonitored, you cut back on the
paynents to the provider until you get back in line.

One thing that mght be used as a very inportant
feature of this would be to say, 'Ckay, if you want to
surrender your Pernmanent Fund dividend and that of all
your famly, strictly voluntary, we'll give you health
care. If it's a famly, that's approaching $8, 000. That
m ght just do famly.

| think you need a commttee to design a system and
cost a system The conmmttee would have to have staff
enough to ferret out all the nunbers. | used to have
the nunbers, but they're out of date and see what it
would cost. It mght turn out that it cost too much; it
m ght be that it costs $10,000 per person and that's $1
billion and that's too nuch. It's nore than that; it's
$6 billion for 600,000 folks. It mnmight be that by

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 36- Novenber 9, 2001



spreading the risk again and by taking care of
everybody in the universal system the cost would only
be $4,000 per person. | think if you could sinmplify the
adm nistration and stop the wangle over who pays what
part of the bill, you could provide care universally to
Al askans.

Adm ni strative costs across the country because of all
the country, because of all the different players,
anounts to 25 percent of the health care dollar. If you
reduce that down to 10 percent, you could take care of
nost of the folks that don't get taken care of.

M5. RENEE MASON said she has lived in Al aska since 1975 and has
rai sed seven children. Currently she is helping a friend who is
77 years old who is involved with the Medicaid and Medicare
systemand living at Providence Horizon House, an assisted living
center. She would like to see Medicaid as it is cone to an end.
She is intrigued by the possibilities. She wanted to call their
attention to approximately 20 young adults who are honel ess and
because they have no address or phone nunber, they can't get
jobs. Sone of them are still under age and not eligible for
services. She stated:

The young nen end up stealing and dealing drugs; the
young wonen end up getting pregnant in order to have
services available to thensel ves, because when you have
a child, you qualify. Sonme famlies have just enough
income to not qualify for services and yet not enough
income to provide the services for thenselves. The
persons who are in need are quite often those people
| east able to help thenselves. They are ill and if
you've ever been ill for any length of tinme or in the
hospital, you know you just do not feel up to dealing
with bureaucracy and the paperwork and the confusion
that comes with Medicaid and Medicare. These people are
often elderly. My friend in the last three years has
ended up in the hospital three times with heart attacks
because of concerns over her financial situation - part
of that is Medicaid and Medicare problenms. The other
group that falls into this category are the uneducat ed,
often the poor. The reason they are uneducated is
partially because they are poor. The reason they're
poor is because they're wuneducated. It becones a
vicious cycle and generation after generation these
people are the ones who are vulnerable to abuse and
m suse of the system They do not wunderstand the
statutes and regulations and are intimdated by the
bureaucracy that goes with it.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -37- Novenber 9, 2001



| was intrigued by the suggestion of a one |arge door
type of agency where one caseworker handles a famly
and is therefore able to coordinate all of the services
that are avail abl e.

M5. MASON pointed out that sonetines people have no idea what
services are available to them She |iked the housing waiver for
the elderly as it helped her friend do as much as she is capable
of doing. She thought it mght be worthwhile to look at a simlar
ki nd of housing waiver for young adults who need counseling, job
training, day care and mnimal health care that mght get them
into the work force, off of welfare and hopefully out of the
Medi caid systemin the future.

M5. MASON sai d she believes that noney spent on intervention and
preventive care will be a |l ong-term cost saver

M5. KAREN NUGEN- LOGAN, Executive Director, Nugen's Ranch, said
they offer health insurance to their enployees. They are a snall
non-profit organi zation that contracts with the state. In Cctober
they were told their premuns were going to go up by $346 per
enpl oyee, a 52 percent increase fromlast year. The facility is
now payi ng $999.01 for each enpl oyee on the plan. They were told
the prem umincreased because she hired ol der people and that her
group had nore health problens. This is devastating to enpl oyees
who are contributing to part of the increase, but she is still on
the verge of losing full coverage for everybody because she can't
afford it. Affordable insurance is very inportant to the
enpl oyees.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked what her annual prem um was.

MR. LOGAN replied that before October it was $652. 85 per enpl oyee
and she had 15 at that tine. The conpany is Aetna and it is the
only conpany that would take the group in 1996. Her conpany only
covers the enployee, not their famlies.

MR. JERRY NEAR said he is a long-time insurance agent and a
student of this issue for a long tinme. He thought nmandated costs
and nental health parity are issues. He believes that on the
Kenai, nore than 20 percent of the people are uninsured. He put
out a web page at aktelecare.org that outlines M. Rodman's
testimony. One concern has been the escalating cost of state
participation in Medicaid. The cost of health insurance is so
hi gh that many people can't handle it any nore and the Medicaid
program is picking up the slack. The state m ght soon have to
carry the cost of the Denali Kid Care program and he's not sure
how it will do that.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON t hanked himfor his advice and efforts.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 38- Novenber 9, 2001



M5. MARY GRISCO Al Alaska Pediatric Partnership, said that the
Partnership is a unique collaborative effort anong the nedical
group at Fort Richardson, the Alaska Native Tribal Health
Consortium and Children's Hospi t al at Provi dence, t he
Muni ci pality of Anchorage, the Departnment of Social Services, and
Vall ey Hospital at Fairbanks Menorial. They are encouraged by
Denali Kid Care. It gives children of working parents a nedica
hone, a termthe Anmerican Acadeny of Pediatrics Policy says is a
pl ace where conprehensive continuously accessible famly centered
coordinated and affordable care is available for [indisc] by
qualified children's health specialists. This neans that people
don't doctor-hop, which neans that expenses go down for clinics
and energency roons. It neans that parents have accessibility to
care for primary health needs |ike shots.

Heal th insurance for a lot of working parents sinply isn't there.
Either enployers do not provide it, because they figure the
enpl oyee can find it sonmewhere else, or the enployee sponsored
private care has gaps in the benefits or high cost sharing
obligations. A parent who has a nedical hone for their child has
| ess stress and will therefore be a better worker on the job. The
Part nershi p appreci ates concerns about fraud and is interested in
stream i ning accountability w thout increasing operating costs.

M5. MARILYN KASPER, Alaska Primary Care Association, said she
wanted to talk to them about the Conmunity Health Center Program
which is playing an increasingly inportant role in the state. In
1995, Alaska had a single Ph.D. in Anchorage and that nunber has
grown to 9 non-tribal and tribal organizations wth 29 sites
statewide. Al of these places see people who woul d not otherw se
have access to basic primary health care. President Bush has
shown his commtnent to the program with his plan to double the
nunber of health centers in the country and doubl e the nunber of
people they serve. She thought they would see a $175 nillion
increase in appropriations for the program Senators Stevens and
Mur kowski have al so recogni zed the inportance of health centers
and are working hard to strengthen the program here. Statistics
from 1999 indicate that Al aska has five community health center
organi zations and clinics in 13 communities. The program has
doubled since then. In 1999, on average, 37 percent of the
patients at the centers were uninsured and sone centers exceeded
50 percent. Thirty-four of the people were insured by Medicaid,
Denali Kid Care or Medicare (5 percent) and 29 percent had
private insurance. Now that the health centers are serving people
in 29 comunities it's too early to tell what the nunbers are,
but they have becone a major source of care for people in the
state. This is inportant since the cost of nedical service in
Al aska is 60 percent nore than it is nationally and the cost of
provi ding nedical care has risen nearly 200 percent in the |ast
20 years. Financial barriers to obtaining health care coverage

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 39- Novenber 9, 2001



are consi derable, even if someone has i nsurance.

She pointed out that health centers save the system noney and by
providing that ounce of prevention, they are saving pounds of
cure later. The inpacts are significant in ternms of |[|ower
hospital adm ssion rates, shorter Ilengths of stay, |[|essen
appropriate use of the energency roons and significantly | ower
infant nortality and norbidity rates. Studies over the |ast
decade have found nationally that Medicaid patients who use
health centers receive care of greater quality that costs |ess
than those who use the private prinmary care providers, such as
hospitals, outpatient units and private physicians. These
findings are consistent with dozens of studies on the cost
effectiveness and quality of care.

M5. KASPER said the cost of technology is a major driver in the
rapidly escalating cost of health care. The reasonabl e
rei nbursenent system for Medicaid patients is changing to a
system that will start costing health centers noney to see the
patients that they are serving. She urged the legislature to
continue to support health centers.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if the big hospitals belong to her
group.

M5. KASPER replied no and that the Hospital and Nursing Hone
Associ ation represents them Health centers are private not-for-
profit agencies.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if they get sonme of their revenue from
fees for service.

MS. KASPER s answer was i ndi scerni bl e.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if they are a trade association or a
| obby group.

MS. KASPER replied they are a nenbership association of people in
the health care field, but they are not a |obbying organization
in the traditional sense. She said, "Qur mssion is to pronpte
access to health care for people who don't have it."

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked if it is just for the nenbers of her
associ ation.

M5. KASPER replied no; it is for people who live in the state of
Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked who pays for her services.

M5. KASPER replied they get sonme federal funding and nenbership

SENATE HES COW TTEE -40- Novenber 9, 2001



dues and they provide services like grant witing and conference
formation, etc.

REPRESENTATI VE DYSON asked who pays the dues.

M5. KASPER replied that for the nenbership organizations - the
comunity health centers, the rural health clinics, conmunity
clinics and sone institutional nenbers - the dues are not
significant. Dues are $200 - $400 for an organi zati onal nenber
$100 for an institutional menber; $10 for a student and $50 for
an individual nmenber. They also have a sliding scale policy for
dues.

M5. SUSAN MASON, Sunshine Community Health Center, said Sunshine
is a non-profit famly qualified health center located in
Tal keetna. It is a critical safety net provider for the northern
region of the Mat-Su Valley. Statistics from 1999 indicate that
35 percent of individuals in WIllow and 26 percent in Trapper
Creek live below 200 percent of the poverty level. Analysis of
patient data indicates that 40 - 50 percent of their patient
popul ati on has no nedi cal insurance. They al so have an increasing
nunber of underinsured patients who nostly have catastrophic
i nsurance coverage or their deductibles are so high that they are
virtually wi thout insurance. They have a difficult time getting
providers in her area and this is a critical and growi ng problem
for rural Alaska. Community health centers play a crucial role in
providing overall health care for Al askans. She applauded the
commttee's commtnent to ensure careful and conprehensive
planning for our state's Medicaid plans and urged them to
consider the negative inpacts on sone of the safety net
provi ders.

M5. SARAH JACKSON, manager, St. Francis House, said they provide
basi ¢ energency services to economcally struggling famlies in
Anchorage. Many people they work with have nedi cal problens that
contribute to their poverty. Also, a lot of people who are
working can't take care of their famlies. In addition, they
answer the statewi de 24-hour information and referral hotline.
She is a nenber of the Anchorage Access to Health Care Coalition
because she believes, based on her experiences, there is a high
correl ati on between i nadequate access to health care and poverty.
She is concerned that Denali Kid Care is going to be conprom sed
and asked them to do everything in their power to protect the
m nimal health prograns they have in place. She stated:

As it is, these prograns are woefully inadequate and
there are thousands of working Al askans who do not have
access to affordable health insurance and only receive

health care in tines of an energency... Many of these
people who are treated in this way have no nmeans to
fill the prescriptions they receive. This 1is an

SENATE HES COW TTEE -41- Novenber 9, 2001



ineffective way to deal with health care needs.

M5. ANGELA GONZALEZ, consuner nenber of the Medical Care Advisory
Commttee, said they advise the Comm ssioner on all aspects of
the nedical industry. Her three children have been on the Denal
Kid Care system since it started and she is a believer in
preventive care. Before Denali Kid Care they had to go to the
energency roomquite a bit. She had comments from nothers who had
children with health issues or had prenatal care through Denal
Kid Care who are very grateful. A lot of the children were born
healthy and a |ot of them who had nedi cal problens were covered,
which nmade it possible for themto becone healthy.

3:45 - 3:52 p.m BREAK
CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN said this commttee is a junping off place for

this issue and welconmed comments or suggestions. She thanked
everyone for attending and adjourned the neeting at 3:55 p. m

SENATE HES COW TTEE -42- Novenber 9, 2001



